
ADDENDUM NO. 1 
 

TO 
 

CONTRACT DOCUMENTS 
 

IMPROVEMENTS TO HILLCROFT PLAYGROUND 
Waltham, MA 

 
December 05, 2018 

 
NOTICE TO BIDDERS 

 
The attention of all bidders submitting proposals for “Improvements to Hillcroft Playground” is called to 
the following Addenda to the printed specifications and plans. The items set forth herein, whether of 
omission, addition or substitution are to be included in, and form part of the specifications and plans of the 
above named project for bids to be received as advertised. 
 
The following clarifications, modifications, deletions and additions are hereby incorporated into and 
become part of the Contract Documents. 
 
WRITTEN CHANGES TO THE PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS 
 
1. SK-1: 

 
A. ADD limits of drain pipe maintenance. Drain pipe maintenance includes clearing and water 

jetting all drainage structures and lines within limits of work and to the extents shown on 
this plan. Contractor shall verify working condition.  

 
2. SK-2: 

 
A. ADD CCTV 4” Lateral to survey and DELETE callout on L5.00. 

 
3. BID FORM 
 

A. DELETE Bid Form, issued in original specifications  
 
ADD Bid Form, per attachment. 
 

4. Specification’s Table of Contents, APPENDICES: 
 

A. ADD Appendix B. Test Pit Results 
 

B. ADD Appendix C. Order of Conditions 
 

5. Specification Section 05 50 00 MISCELANEOUS METALS 
 

A. Subsection 2.01, A,1: 
 

1. DELETE Steel edging shall be ¼” x 4” with steel spikes as manufactured by Sure-
loc Edging, 494 E. 64th Street, Holland, MI 49423 or approved equal. Color shall be 
black. 
 



ADD Steel edging shall be ¼” x 5” with steel spikes as manufactured by Sure-loc 
Edging, 494 E. 64th Street, Holland, MI 49423 or approved equal. Color shall be 
black. 

 
B. DELETE Subsection 3.01 GALVANIZING 

 
6. Specification Section 12 93 00 SITE FURNISHINGS 

 
A. Subsection 2.01, A: 

 
1. DELETE Trash receptacles shall be model # LR305P, each furnished with an in-

ground post package model # LR100N and plastic liner model # LR310N 
manufactured by Wabash Valley Manufacturing, Inc., 505 East Main Street, Silver 
Lake, IN or approved equal. Receptacle shall be secured and installed per 
manufacturer’s recommendations. Receptacle color shall be BLACK.  
 
ADD Trash receptacles shall be model # 69-167-32-0003, surface mounted and 
furnished with a 32 gal. plastic liner model # 49-32 manufactured by DuMor Inc. 138 
Industrial Circle, Mifflintown, PA 17059, Phone: 800-598-4018, or approved equal. 
Receptacle color shall be BLACK. See attached cut sheet. 
  

B. Subsection 2.02, A: 
 

1. DELETE The Contractor furnish and install 1 Big Belly Solar "Kiosk" as 
manufactured by BigBelly Solar, Inc., 85 Wells Avenue, Suite 305 Newton, MA 1‐
888‐820‐0300, or approved equal, Model #BigBKiosk1" consisting of a Big Belly 
Trash Compactor, and a SmartBelly Recycling Collector. 

 
1. Each unit shall be approximately 50.4" in height, 25" in width, and 27" in 

depth. 
 

a. Compactor shall have a 33 gallon bin volume. 
b. Recycling Collector shall have a 50 gallon bin volume. 

 
2. Units shall have a fully automated IC processor controlled system which 

senses trash level, fullness, and machine status, with LED status indicator. 
System voltage shall be a low voltage system, 12 Volts DC, with a spill‐
proof maintenance free 12 V battery. Units shall be cordless, self‐powered 
requiring no wiring. 

 
3. Materials shall be RoHS compliant, galvanized sheet metal steel interior and 

exterior construction, with a TGIC powder‐coat exterior finish. Interior bins 
shall be leak proof. 

 
4. Units shall have locked front trash removal door, and fully interlocked access 

doors, with separately keyed service access. 
 

5. Units shall be designed to prevent access to compaction area. 
 

6. The Big Belly trash compactor 
 

a. Compaction force shall be 1250 lbs max. 
b. Gear motor shall be heavy duty chain drive (non‐hydraulic). 



c. Users shall be able to deposit trash even during cycle time. 
  
ADD Recycling receptacles shall be model # 69-167-32-0004, surface mounted and 
furnished with a 32 gal. plastic liner model # 49-32 manufactured by DuMor Inc. 138 
Industrial Circle, Mifflintown, PA 17059, Phone: 800-598-4018, or approved equal. 
Receptacle color shall be BLACK. See attached cut sheet. 
 

7. Specification Section 32 18 00 RUBBER SAFETY SURFACING, Subsection 1.02, E, 2, Page 1: 
 

A. DELETE The surface shall meet the Head Injury Criteria (HIC) of less than 1000.  Lab 
test shall be performed at (3) temperatures per ASTM F1292/F355E over concrete.  
Testing over aggregate will not be allowed  
 
ADD The surface shall meet the Head Injury Criteria (HIC) of less than 800.  Lab test 
shall be performed at (3) temperatures per ASTM F1292/F355E over concrete.  Testing 
over aggregate will not be allowed 
 

8. Specification Section 32 30 00 SITE IMPROVEMENTS, Subsection 2.02, A, page 3: 
 

A. DELETE Basketball standards shall be a two (2) 6’ offset and one (1) 10’ offset 
gooseneck posts manufactured by True Bounce (True Bounce, 56 Conduit St., New 
Bedford, MA 02745 PG Series Gooseneck, or equal.),  
 
ADD Basketball standards shall be one (1) 10’ height gooseneck post with a 6’ extension 
and two (2) 8’ height gooseneck posts with 4’ extensions as manufactured by True 
Bounce (True Bounce, 56 Conduit St., New Bedford, MA 02745 PG Series Gooseneck, 
or equal.) 
 

 
 

9. Specification Section 32 32 13 BLACK VINYL CLAD CHAIN LINK FENCE, Subsection 2.03 
 

A. DELETE: E. Tie Wires for Tying Fabric 
 

1. Tie wires shall be bvc shall be attached using a twist band and buckle 
system  

2. Bands shall be 6 gage thickness, 6 ½” long galvanized aluminum ties 
with a minimum breaking strength of 850 lbs. 

 
 ADD:   E.  Fabric Bands for Tying Fabric 
 

1. Fabric shall be attached using a BAND-IT band and buckle 
system, or approved equal. 

2. Bands shall be 0.020” thickness, 200/300 series stainless steel ½” 
wide bands, with a minimum breaking strength of 850 lbs., ½” 
band capacity ear-loct design buckles to be manufactured with 
0.050” thick material, 201/301 series stainless steel. 

 
QUESTIONS AND CLARIFICATIONS 
 



Question 1: Was any Geotech done for this project?  
 
Response:  Two test pits were performed.  The results can be found in the attached Appendix B-Test 

Pit Results.  
 

Question 2: What are the extents of drain pipe maintenance in the streets? 
 
Response: Refer to the attached SK-1 for limits of drain pipe maintenance.  
 
Question 3: Will rock/ledge excavation be included as a unit price or should it be included in the lump 

sum? 
 
Response: 50 cy of rock and ledge excavation will be included in the base bid and a unit price will be 

established. Refer to the attached Bid Form. 
 
Question 4: Should we plan on construction to begin in the Winter of 2019 or the Spring of 2019? 
 
Response: The start date of construction will be weather dependent. Construction shall begin as soon 

as the funding is secured and the weather permits. 
 
Question 5: Can you clarify the HIC ratings for the poured in place rubber surfacing? 
 
Response: The surface shall meet the Head Injury Criteria (HIC) of less than 800.  
 
Question 6: Where can water be accessed from during construction? 
 
Response:  Water can be accessed from the hydrant on the corner of Hatherly Road and Hemlock 

Terrace. 
 
Question 7: Is it possible to have the play equipment shipped to the contractor’s yard instead of the 

project site? 
 
Response: Yes, but the contractor is responsible for the safe and secure storage and transit of the play 

equipment during the duration of the project construction. The City is purchasing the 
equipment directly and must have reciepts of delivery from the contractor.  

 
Question 8: Where should the double straw wattle vs. single straw wattles vs. silt fence be located on 

site? 
 
Response: Detail 3 on sheet L7.00 of the construction plans shows two staking details of the strw 

wattles. The detail showing the double straw wattle is referring to where the two meet to 
form one line. Refer to sheet L5.00 for locations of erosion controls and refer to 
specification section 01 57 19 ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION and the order of 
conditions (attached) for more information on specific erosion control details.  

 
Question 9: There are multiple types of erosion controls listed in the specs and on the plans. Please 

clarify the locations of each type of erosion control. 
 
Response: Please refer to SK-2 for a plan of specific erosion control locations.  
 
Question 10: Where can we discharge excess water, should we encounter it during excavation?  
 
Response:  Refer to the order of Conditions (attached) Section 23. 



 
Question 11: On page L3.00 the bituminous concrete color seal coat call out is pointing to the walking 

path.  I believe this is supposed to be pointing to the basketball court for seal coating. Can 
you please confirm that the sidewalk does not get the seal coat and that the only area that 
requires seal coating is the basketball court? 

 
Response:  Correct, the callout should be pointing to the basketball court and not the pathway. The 

pathways do not receive color seal coat. 
 
 
Question 12: Are we required to carry the cost of the Big-Belly Kiosk in our price?  These receptacles 

are only available on loan for a monthly fee from the company.  How would you like us to 
provide a cost for this product? 

 
Response: The Big-Belly receptacles have been removed from the project. See item 7 above and the 

attached trash receptacle cut sheet. 
 
Question 8: On Page. L5.00 there is a callout for “CCTV 4” Lateral” which is seemingly pointing 

towards the proposed DMH. Can you clarify what this is?  
 
Response: The CCTV 4” Lateral is an old utility to be abanondoned in field. See SK-2.  
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
SK-1 
SK-2 
Bid Form 
Appendix B-Test Pit Results 
Appendix C- Order of Conditions 
Trash Receptacle Cut Sheet 
Recycling Receptacle Cut Sheet 

 
 

END OF ADDENDUM NO. 1 
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1 Winners Circle, Suite 130, Albany, NY 12205 
Tel: 518.463.4400 

Offices in: MA, CT, NH, VT, NY, NJ, PA, SC & FL 
westonandsampson.com 

 
 
FORM OF BID  
 
ITEM 1 – Improvements to Hillcroft Playground, lump sum 
 
Work under this lump sum item shall constitute full compensation as herein specified, for all of the work completed in 
accordance with the drawings and specifications including, but not limited to, the following:  

- Remove and dispose of off-site in its entirety the basketball court and the playground, including all pavement, 
subbase, structures, foundations, goal posts, and appurtenant items; 

- Remove and dispose of off-site in its entirety all drainage structures, boulders, trees and site furniture, as noted 
on the plans; 

- Remove and dispose of all bituminous concrete pavements to full depth, including the subbase as shown on 
the plans 

- Strip and stockpile topsoil, fine grade and loam and hydroseed as shown on the plans.  
- Clear debris from the intermittent stream, perform invasive species management and seed with wildflower 

meadow mix as shown on the plans 
- Construct a basketball court including subbase, bituminous concrete pavement, seal coating, goal posts and 

goals, and all fencing, dasher boards and gates; 
- Construct the new playground including installation of the play equipment, poured in place rubber surfacing, 

curbing and subbase 
- Install all drainage and drainage structures as shown on the plans 
- Install all site furnishings, trees, fencing, and surfacing as shown on the plans. 
- Contractor is responsible for any demolition or preparation work required to implement improvements as show 

on plans.  
 

 
Total Item 1 $      

 
 
ITEM 2 - SUPPLEMENTAL UNIT PRICE FOR ROCK/LEDGE EXCAVATION AND REMOVAL 
 
Supplemental Unit price shall be applied to the improvements at Hillcroft Playground and paid for at the unit price bid 
times the actual area of work completed. 
 

Item     Unit Est Qty      Unit Price      Bid Price 

2a.) Rock/Ledge Excavation and Removal  CY 50  $   $             

 
         Total Item 2 $      
 

 
TOTAL BID (sum of Items 1 & 2)    $__   _______ 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

APPENDIX B 



Test Pit Data: 
Date of test pit 1: September 26, 2016 
Date of test pit 2:  June 5, 2017 
Performed by:  City of Waltham Water & Sewer Division 
Location:   Hillcroft Playground 
 
Test pit narrative: 
 
Test pit 1- Excavated 4’ and ran into loamy topsoil, stoney gravel and grey hard pan with asphalt 
chunks.  
 
Depth                   Material                
0-1.5’                     Loam 
1.5-4’                     Stoney Gravel 
4’<                         Hard Pan with Asphalt Chunkc 
 
Percolation test results-  
 
Filled hole at 4’ to saturate, 
 
After   Level dropped 
14 minutes 2” 
22 minutes 1.25” 
 
Refilled hole with water 
 
After  Level dropped 
20 minutes .01” 
 
There was little to no drainage/ percolation into the soil from the free-standing water 
 
Test pit 2- Excavated to 4’ and ran in to standing water, that was on top of a silty layer 
(photograph 1).  Continued excavation down to about 9’ to see if the underlaying layers were any 
better.  At the bottom of the test pit another layer of silty/clayey material was encountered 
(photograph 2). 
 
No percolation test performed. 
 
 
Depth                   Material                
0-2’                        Loam 
2-4’                        gravely loam 
4-6’                        Sandy Silt/Clay 
6-7’                        Sandy Organic 
7-9’                        Silt/Clay 
 



  
 
  Photograph 1     Photograph 2 
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